
Page 1 of 3 
 

   

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2015  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

15C‐0416. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

15C‐0417.  Roll Call 

15C‐0418.  Establishment of Quorum 
15C‐0419.  Pledge of Allegiance 
15C‐0420.  Reports of Standing Committees 
15C‐0421.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

 
  

CONSENT AGENDA CA15‐20 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0422. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 26, 
2015 

4‐9  

 
15C‐0423. 

 
Approval of a Right of Entry Agreement to Permit the Burlington Northern 
Sante Fe Access City of Galena Property for Restoration Activities at the 
Derailment Site 

10‐13 

 
15C‐0424. 

 
Approval of a Resolution Urging Illinois State Leaders to Release Non‐General 
Fund Revenues Payable to Local Governments  

14‐16 

 
15C‐0425. 

 
Acceptance of September 2015 Financial Report  

‐‐ 

 
 

Page 1 of 50



Page 2 of 3 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0387. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on Possible Changes to the Motorized 
Vehicles for Hire (Taxi) Ordinance  

 
17 

 
15C‐0388. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Possible Changes to Street Performers 
Ordinance  

 
18‐26 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0426. 
   
Presentation of Water System Study by IIW Engineers and Surveyors 

 
27‐31 

 
15C‐0427. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of the Illinois 
Municipal League Risk Management Association Minimum/Maximum 
Contribution Agreement 

 
32‐34 

 
15C‐0428. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Grant Agreement with the Illinois Clean 
Energy Community Foundation for the Installation of a Solar Panel Array at 
City Hall  

 
35 

 
15C‐0429. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract for the Construction of a Roof 
Over the Side Entry of Turner Hall 

 
36 

 
15C‐0430. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Contracts for Electrical Service and Garage 
Doors at the Fire Training Storage Building 

 
37 

 
15C‐0431. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on  Establishing the Amount of the 2015 Tax 
Levy to be Collected in 2016 

 
38‐42 

 
15C‐0432. 

 
Warrants  

43‐50 

 
15C‐0433. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
15C‐0434. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
15C‐0435. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

 
15C‐0436. 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 2 of 50



Page 3 of 3 
 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. November 11  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Deer Committee   Wed. November 19  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. November 23  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Turner Hall Committee  Thurs. December 3  8:30 A.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. December 3  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, November 5, 2015 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

Page 3 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 October 2015 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 26 OCTOBER 2015 
 
 

15C-0398 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 26 October 2015.  
 
15C-0399– ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
15C-0400– ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
15C-0401 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.   
 
15C-0402 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
None. 
 
15C-0403 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Basil Conroy, Eco Cab – Conroy addressed the Council with regard to limiting the number of 
taxi cab businesses in town.  He highlighted the following: 
 

 Recipient of a license should possess strong ties to the local community. 
 Adding another taxi could cause a huge hardship to the local citizens as they would 

likely be only available on weekends. 
 Another license could add 5-10 more vehicles on the streets. 
 Tracking of drivers would be difficult. 
 The addition of another license at this time could cause the current companies a 

financial hardship. 
 
Artie Michaels, Street Performer – Michales stated he has been a Street Performer for the past 
20 years.  Years back then Chief Jerry Westemeier set up some rules which have worked pretty 
well.  The rules were first come first serve.  You couldn’t leave your spot except for restroom 
breaks nor could you leave your stuff unattended for more than 15 minutes.  Michaels stated he 
would like to see it added that only Jo Daviess County residents may obtain street performer 
permits.  He also recommended adding a rider clause for variances.  Variances could be given or 
denied by the City.  The spray painting artist has been a problem with the rest of the artists.  
Michaels feels spray painting is the manufacturing phase of hard goods to produce a product for 
sale which has no place in a city park.  It is disruptive and a threat to people’s health.  Michaels 
feels if he wants to paint and sell, he should not be able to circumvent the laws.  He stated he 
hopes the city continues to have live music.   
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA15-19 
 
15C-0404 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
OCTOBER 13, 2015 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 October 2015 

 
15C-0405 – APPROVAL OF REAPPOINTMENT OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MEMBERS JAMES HOLMAN AND DAN O’KEEFE FOR TERMS BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 
2015 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve Consent Agenda CA15-16 as presented 
(item 15C-0404 was removed from the Consent Agenda).       
 
Discussion: Bernstein requested item 15C-0404 be removed from the Consent Agenda.      
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 
15C-0404 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
OCTOBER 13, 2015 
 
Correction:  Item 15C-0387 
   
Strike:  Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Fach to approve the changes to the motorized 
vehicles for hire (taxi) ordinance as presented, 15C-0387.  
 
Add:  A motion to approve was made and later withdrawn.   
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Fach, to approve the minutes as corrected.   
 
Discussion: None.  
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
15C-0387 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON POSSIBLE CHANGES TO THE 
MOTORIZED VEHICLES FOR HIRE (TAXI) ORDINANCE 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Westemeier, to defer this item to the next meeting.   
 
Discussion:  Fach questioned under section 120.07 who delineates what amount of insurance is 
required?  Lori Swalley, A to B Cab advised the Secretary of State requires $300,000 of liability 
insurance.  If you cross state lines then it is $1 million dollars.  Fach feels $300,000 isn’t enough.  
He also recommended adding an indemnification clause.   
 
Fach questioned under 120.06, Section A, why we would allow the taxis to be licensed in another 
state.  He feels they should be licensed in Illinois.  Nack advised doing so would put a restraint on 
interstate commerce.  The City doesn’t have the authority to dictate that they be licensed in the 
State of Illinois.   
 
Kieffer questioned if the City can legally limit the number of licenses.  Nack advised it is his 
opinion that the City cannot.  If the City were to do so it must be tied to a legitimate health safety 
issue.   
 

Page 5 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 October 2015 

Fach questioned if the state does a safety inspection on the vehicles.  He was advised they are 
inspected when they apply for the vehicle safety inspection sticker.   
 
Under section 120.07, Paragraph 5, the word “fill” should be changed to “full”.   
 
Fach brought up Uber Taxi Service and recommended language be added to prohibit the use of 
Uber in Galena.   
 
15C-0388 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON POSSIBLE CHANGES TO STREET 
PERFORMERS ORDINANCE 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Fach, to table item 15C-0388 to give staff time to 
provide input on possible changes to the ordinance.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
.   
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  Lincoln 
            
   The motion carried. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
15C-0406 – WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT BY 
AMERICAN WATER CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Jeff Saylor updated the Council on the Water and Sewer System Operations and Maintenance 
Report by American Water.   
 

 The City will receive a 1.35 percent discount on the contract for year two.  They will 
continue to provide the same quality service. 

 They had one main break on Franklin Street with no known cause. 
 They have investigated the second sink hole on South Street with the Public Works 

Department.  The sewer main settled.  The lateral was a cardboard piece of pipe called 
orange board.  Over time that bends and it separated from the main.  It has been 
replaced. 

 In negotiated contract agreed to give 1 percent discount in second year.  Lowering 
monthly fee by 1.35 percent with same quality service. 

 All hydrants were flushed in August.  They have gone back to make some repairs which 
were mostly caps and chains.  A few were difficult to operate and they have been 
repaired.   

 A squirrel caused some problems at the Meeker Street Lift Station. 
 Saylor discussed the end of year true up accounts.  They over spent in electricity.  Jo 

Carroll noticed they had been charging us incorrectly.  They sent a refund in the amount 
of $18,300 which was applied to this year’s electricity.  The true up ends up at $4,000.  
Now that Jo Carroll has us on the correct rate system, it should help us realize more of 
the fruits of the solar system.   
 

15C-407 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND THE JO DAVIESS CONSERVATION FOUNDATION 
FOR AN ADDITION TO GATEWAY PARK 
 
Motion: Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve a Cooperative Agreement between the 
City of Galena and the Jo Daviess Conservation Foundation for an addition to Gateway Park.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 

Page 6 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 October 2015 

Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
15C-0408 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN JO 
DAVIESS COUNTY TRANSIT AND THE CITY OF GALENA FOR PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
SERVICE OPERATED BY THE WORKSHOP 
 
Motion: Fach moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve an agreement between Jo Daviess 
County Transit and the City of Galena for public transportation service operated by the workshop.   
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Bernstein 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
15C-0409 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE RENEWAL OF THE EMPLOYEE 
HEALTH, DENTAL, DISABILITY AND LIFE POLICIES FOR THE PERIOD NOVEMBER 1, 
2015-OCTOBER 31, 2016 
 
Motion: Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the renewal of the employee health, 
dental, disability and life polices for the period November 1, 2015-October 31, 2016 with 
BlueCross for health, Principal for dental and renewing the disability and life policies with Met Life 
with the understanding that staff will proceed in trying to look into lower rates.   
 
Discussion:  Bernstein questioned if United Health were to come in less would that offset the 
overrun?  Moran advised if they came in 20 percent less it would.   
 
Fach questioned if the increase was due to our claims.  Moran advised he is not privy to that 
information.  For a group our size, we experienced higher than average use.   
 
Moran advised the other companies haven’t seen the renewal.  They have a right to see that and 
once they do there is a good chance that their bid could suddenly become more.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 
 
15C-0410 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CONTRACTS FOR CONSTRUCTION 
AT THE FIRE TRAINING STORAGE BUILDING 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Westemeier, to reject the bid for framing from Faulkner’s 
Construction in the amount of $19,970 and approve the bid from Jackson Concrete & Excavation 
in the amount of $2,731 for concrete work with an additional $1,500 for help with shoring if 
needed.   
 
Discussion:  The bids were slightly higher than what was budgeted.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
   The motion carried. 

Page 7 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 October 2015 

 
15C-0411 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Fach, to approve the Warrants as presented with the 
addition of a Warrant to Jo Daviess County Treasurer in the amount of $10,510.50.     
 
Discussion: Moran explained the warrant to Jo Daviess County Treasurer is for property taxes 
on the green space property at Scenic Meadows, Unit 3.  Taxes were not anticipated.  Moran has 
contacted Don Manning and he is actively working on getting them reimbursed.  It was not a part 
of the agreement that we pay the property taxes.  The taxes were paid to avoid the risk of having 
the property going to tax sale.   
 
Fach questioned what the permits were for the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.  He was 
advised that was for our annual NPDES Elimination System Permit.  The cost is based upon the 
size of the community.  This also includes the land application permit and storm water discharge 
permit.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Kieffer 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-412 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Dike Path – Fach noted we are missing three signs on the dike path.  According to information he 
has received they were ripped off of the stand.  The stand has been removed, however, the bolts 
are still sticking up.  He is concerned this is a hazard.   
 
War Memorial – Fach reported we still have concrete that is about an inch above the main 
sidewalk and bricks.  This needs to be repaired. 
 
Highway Signs – Fach stated we are in need of signs on the highway about deer and warning 
about sudden stops.   
 
Restrooms – Fach stated he was one of the people who wanted public restrooms that could be 
hosed down.  There was a disaster this weekend and it would have been nice to have the ability 
to hose it down.  We need to figure out how to make those water proof so we could hose them 
down.   
 
October – Westemeier stated the business people should be happy for the month of October.  
The weekends have been very busy with good weather.   
 
15C-0413 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Third and Rives – Moran reported Third and Rives will be paved on Wednesday of this week.   
 
CodeRed – Staff used the CodeRed system during the water main break on Highway 20 last 
week.  We were able to send the message to an isolated area.   
 
Volunteers – We are looking for volunteers for the Halloween parade.  They are in need of 
people to stand in the parade route to hold spectators back.   
 
War Memorial – Moran advised the VFW has contracted with someone to repair the bricks.   
 
Interpretive signs – Staff has been working on finding artwork to replace the signs on the levy.  
They have been working with the museum to find the materials.  In the short term, the bolts could 
be cut off.   

Page 8 of 50



Regular Board Meeting  26 October 2015 

Deer Signs – Moran advised the Department of Transportation in our district no longer erects 
deer signs.  They feel they are ineffective and would need to be everywhere.  IDOT will not 
authorize the installation of signs nor will they install them.  There are deer accidents on every 
mile of roadway in this district.   
 
Deer Committee – The Deer Committee had a very good first meeting.   
 
15C-0414 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner urged everyone to be safe for the parade Saturday night.   
 
Mayor Renner wished the football and volleyball teams’ good luck!   
 
15C-0415 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Lincoln to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
      
The meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk         

Page 9 of 50



ENTRY AGREEMENT

THIS ENTRY AGREEMENT ("Agreement") made this __26__ day of October, 2015___, ("Effective Date") by and 
between the City of Galena, ("Owner") and BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware Corporation ("BNSF") whereby 
Owner grants BNSF access to a part of the:

06-000-302-00

(hereinafter referred to as "Property" and further defined in Exhibit "A" attached hereto), for the purposes specified 
below.  

Owner is willing to grant BNSF and its Representatives (defined below) access to the Property on the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  

1.  Grant of License.   Owner grants BNSF a right of entry for reasonable access to the Property for the sole purposes of 
staging materials, operating equipment in service of restoration activities, and soil sampling on, across, under, and 
through the Property. BNSF will not knowingly grant permission for any other party, except BNSF’s duly authorized 
representatives, employees, agents and independent contractors (collectively "Representatives") to enter or use the 
Property. 

2.  Term. The term of this Right of Entry shall commence on the Effective Date and continue in effect until December 31, 
2017. BNSF shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to Owner.

3. Contacts.   Prior to access, BNSF and/or its designated Representatives shall contact the following representatives of 
the owner to arrange for access and to obtain information regarding the Property:

Owner:  City of Galena BNSF: Arcadis (on behalf of BNSF)
Address:     101 Green Street Address: 10 S Riverside Plaza, Suite 1900

Galena, IL 61036 Chicago, IL 60606

Telephone: 815-777-1050 Telephone: 312-575-3700

4.  Liability. While on the Property, BNSF and its Representatives will comply and will cause all Representatives to 
comply with all applicable government laws and regulations. BNSF and its Representatives will be responsible for any 
damage to the Property proximately caused by the negligent acts of BNSF or the negligent acts of its 
Representatives’ use of the Property for the purposes specified herein.  

5.   Applicable Law.   The validity, meaning, and effect of this Agreement shall be determined in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Illinois.

6. No Third Party Rights/Assignment. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer any rights 
or remedies upon any person, other than the parties and their respective employees and representatives.  BNSF may 
not assign its rights under this Agreement without Owner’s prior written consent, which may not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

END OF PAGE – SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

          1 Form (TBD); Rev. 2014XXXX

Page 10 of 50



This Agreement has been duly executed by the parties hereto as of the date below each party's signature; to be 
effective, however, as of the Effective Date.

OWNER:

, a 

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

BNSF:

BNSF Railway Company, a Delaware corporation

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

          2 Form (TBD); Rev. 2014XXXX

Page 11 of 50



Exhibit "A"

          3 Form (TBD); Rev. 2014XXXX

Page 12 of 50



Harris Slough

CITY OF
GALENA

USA

BNSF
RAILWAY

BNSF
RAILWAY

WILLEY
BARRY

TRUSTEE

USA

SCHULT
JOHN A 

SANDRA

BNSF
RAILWAY595

594

593

593

594

596

597

598

599

600
601

602

595

603

604

0 80 160 Feet

SITE MAP

FIGURE

1

^̀

ILLINOIS

MISSOURI

IOWA

C
IT

Y
: C

itr
ix

  D
IV

/G
R

O
U

P
: 

IM
  

D
B

: 
M

G
  

LD
: 

C
K

  
M

A
D

IS
O

N
-K

IP
P

Z
:\

G
IS

P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
\_

E
N

V
\B

N
S

F
_

G
a

le
n

a
IL

\M
X

D
\S

oi
lIn

ve
st

ig
a

tio
n

W
e

llI
n

st
a

llE
ve

nt
\1

_
S

ite
M

a
p

.m
xd

 S
a

ve
d

 B
y:

  
ss

u
tt

o
n

 9
/1

7
/2

0
1

5
 9

:0
3

:3
0

 A
M

Map Date: 9/17/2015

BNSF 
Galena, Illinois

Jo Daviess County, Illinois

I

LEGEND

EXISITING RACEWAY

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
BURIED ELECTRIC UTILITIES

CONTOURS (1 FT)

EARTHEN TRENCH

FORMER STOCKPILE

TREATMENT SYSTEM

PARCEL BOUNDARY

Page 13 of 50



1

Mark Moran

From: IML Legislation <IMLLegislation@iml.org>
Sent: Wednesday, November 04, 2015 10:03 AM
Subject: Illinois Municipal League Statehouse Briefing - November 4, 2015

 

IML Statehouse Briefing 

 

On the ground news and insider information! November 4, 2015
 
Municipalities Urged to Contact State Legislators – Ask For Support of HB 4305 
 
On Tuesday, November 10, the Illinois House will vote on a bill of critical importance to municipalities. 
 
HB 4305 (Rep. Moylan, D-Des Plaines) would restore FY2016 appropriation authority for Motor Fuel 
Tax (MFT), casino gaming, video gaming, and 9-1-1 revenue distributions. The bill also includes 
funding for other, non-municipal purposes. These revenues, which are collected by the state for 
purposes of distributing the money to local governments, are being withheld as a result of the state 
budget impasse. 
 
The IML requests that our members call their state legislators at their district offices and urge that 
they support the immediate restoration of these local fund distributions by voting for HB 4305.  
 

Contact information for House members is available here. 
Contact information for Senate members is available here. 

 
The IML has also made a model letter and resolution available for municipalities to send to state 
leaders. These documents are available on our website. 
 
It is important to convey to legislators that the monies being withheld are non-general revenue funds. 
In other words, voting to support HB 4305 will not affect the state budget, or add to the state's 
debt. Enactment of the bill will, however, ensure that cities, villages, and towns continue to 
receive funding for important public purposes. 
 
We have been asked by some members if coming to Springfield on November 10 would increase the 
likelihood that the bill would pass. We believe that personal phone calls to legislators will be just as 
meaningful as having municipal officials in town that day. That said, we would certainly welcome any 
municipal officials that would like to be in Springfield on November 10.  
 

If you do not wish to receive information from the Illinois Municipal League via e-mail, please reply to this 
email  include the words "Please remove from list" along with your name, municipality and email address 
included in the message. 

 

Page 14 of 50



 

Resolution R15‐ 

Resolution Urging Illinois State Leaders to Release Non‐General Fund Revenues 

Payable to Local Governments 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois has been operating without a Fiscal Year 2016 state budget since 

July 1, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the absence of a budget has resulted in the state withholding over $150 million in 

revenue owed to municipal governments for lack of appropriation authority; and 

WHEREAS, critical local services, such as road construction, maintenance, and repair will remain 

underfunded until state leaders take action to release local Motor Fuel Tax funds to 

municipalities; and 

WHEREAS, many municipalities rely on state distributions of local revenue to fund their 9‐1‐1 

service centers and, without these funds, the effectiveness of emergency services to reach 

citizens will be in peril; and 

WHEREAS, municipal budgets and basic services will be negatively impacted without the 

release of local Use Tax, video gaming fees, and casino fees.     

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY Mayor and City Council of the City of Galena that we call 

upon the Governor and General Assembly to take action to immediately release all non‐general 

fund revenues owed to local governments. These funds include revenues from the Motor Fuel 

Tax, Wireless Service Emergency Fund, Use Tax, Local Government Video Gaming Distributive 

Fund, and casino gaming; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Governor, 

Comptroller, Senate President, Senate Minority Leader, House Speaker, House Minority Leader, 

local legislators, and the Illinois Municipal League. 

Passed this ____day of ____________________, A.D., 2008. 

 

      AYES:        NAYS: 

   

_______________________________ 

Terry Renner, Mayor 

Page 15 of 50



ATTESTATION: 

 

  I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed by the City 

Council of Galena, Illinois, at a meeting held on ___________________, 2015 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Page 16 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Joseph Nack, City Attorney  

DATE:    November 2, 2015 

RE:    Taxi Ordinance 
 
 
Issue:  Whether to restrict or not restrict the number of taxi cab licenses available 
within the city limits of Galena 
 
It is my opinion as City Attorney, that the City Council should not restrict the number of taxi cab 
licenses available.  To do so would be an improper restraint on commerce.  The City has the 
right to regulate taxi cabs, pursuant to Illinois State Statute 65 ILCS 5/11‐42‐6.  The City Council 
has the authority to regulate taxi service be requiring any taxi that operates in the City of 
Galena to acquire the appropriate license.  Taxi companies from outside of Galena may drop 
customers off in Galena, however, not be allowed to pick up customers in the City of Galena 
without the appropriate license.  In addition to other materials, cases relied upon when making 
the decision were Olsen v. Chicago, 25 Ill. 2d 292; Schaumburg v. Franberg, 99 Ill. App 3d 1; and 
Campbell v. Chicago, 577 F. Supp. 1166. 
 

 
 

Page 17 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 4, 2015 

RE:    Street Performers   
 
  
At the October 26 meeting, you directed our staff to review the Street Performers Ordinance 
and provide suggestions for improvements.  We have completed the review of the ordinance 
and have suggestions for your consideration.    
 
To simplify your process of analyzing the ordinance, I have created the attached matrix based 
on commonly asked questions about the ordinance.  The matrix includes the answer to each 
question by citing the current ordinance.  The entire current ordinance is included.  In the far 
right column, suggestions are made for modifying the ordinance to address various issues and 
to clarify the current rules and regulations.    
 
Generally, the courts have found that street performing is a protected expression of free 
speech.  Reasonable regulations are permitted when based on public safety and to avoid noise 
nuisances in residential areas.  Licensing is acceptable, but the licensing process and fees should 
not be unduly burdensome.   
 
If you decide that changes to the ordinances are needed, I would suggest directing the City 
Attorney to review each proposed change against the current case law.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 18 of 50



GALENA CODE OF ORDINANCES 

§ 110.02  DEFINITIONS. 

   STREET PERFORMER. A person engaging in a performance that includes, but is not limited to, the 

following activities: playing musical instruments, singing, dancing, acting, pantomiming, puppeteering, 

juggling, reciting, or creating visual art in its entirety as a performance. 

§ 110.39  STREET PERFORMERS. 

   (A)   Intent. The City of Galena finds that street performers provide a public amenity that enhances the 

character of the community and seeks to encourage such performances in a manner consistent with the 

overall public interest. The City of Galena also recognizes that street performers seek to and do draw 

crowds to their performances. This can create safety problems by impacting the ability of pedestrians to 

move safely on sidewalks and through crosswalks and impeding the response time of safety personnel. 

It can also impact access to and egress from businesses. This section imposes reasonable time, place, 

and manner restrictions on street performers to the extent necessary to ensure the safety of 

performers, their audience, and the general public and to prevent unreasonable interference with the 

enjoyment of peace and quiet by residents in their homes or the ability of businesses to operate and 

conduct their business. 

   (B)   License required.  It shall be unlawful to perform in public without first obtaining a street 

performer license. 

      (1)   An application for a street performer license shall be made to the City Clerk. 

      (2)   The fee for a street performer license shall be $25 per year. Said fee shall be paid at time of 

application. 

      (3)   The street performer license shall be valid from the date of issuance through April 30. 

      (4)   The license holder shall post the license in a conspicuous location at the location of the 

performance. 

      (5)   The street performer license is non‐transferable. 

   (C)   Rules and regulations. 

      (1)   It shall be unlawful to block or restrict an open public street or sidewalk at any time. 

      (2)   Performing is limited to 10:00 am. to 8:00 p.m. 

      (3)   No performer shall utilize any speaker, microphone or mechanical amplification device. 

      (4)   No performer shall generate any sound by any means so that the sound is louder than 70 

decibels (70dB) on the Capital A Scale of an ANSI approved sound level meter measured at a distance of 

50 feet or more, either horizontally or vertically from the point of generation. 

      (5)   No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, flame, axe, saw, or other object that could cause 

serious bodily injury to any person. 

Page 19 of 50



      (6)   No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any stage, platform, or similar structure for use 

during any performance. 

      (7)   Performers may collect donations during or immediately following a performance, however no 

fee shall be charged for any performance. 

   (D)   Exemptions. Performances or performers sponsored by or within a licensed street dance, fair, 

festival, carnival, circus, or similar event, and for the purpose of entertainment, when no solicitation for 

money is made shall be exempt from the license requirements of this section. 

('69 Code, § 12‐9)  (Ord. O‐92‐5, passed 4‐27‐92; Am. Ord. O‐03‐29, passed 7‐28‐03; Am. Ord. O‐04‐18, 

passed 8‐9‐04; Am. Ord. O‐12‐28, passed 12‐26‐12)  Penalty, see § 110.99 

Page 20 of 50



STREET PERFORMER ORDINANCE: CURRENT ORDINANCE AND POSSIBLE REVISIONS 
November 9, 2015   

 

Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
 
INTENT 

   

1. What is the intent of the Street Performer 
Ordinance? 

The City of Galena finds that street performers 
provide a public amenity that enhances the 
character of the community and seeks to encourage 
such performances in a manner consistent with the 
overall public interest. The City of Galena also 
recognizes that street performers seek to and do 
draw crowds to their performances. This can create 
safety problems by impacting the ability of 
pedestrians to move safely on sidewalks and 
through crosswalks and impeding the response time 
of safety personnel. It can also impact access to and 
egress from businesses. This section imposes 
reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions on 
street performers to the extent necessary to ensure 
the safety of performers, their audience, and the 
general public and to prevent unreasonable 
interference with the enjoyment of peace and quiet 
by residents in their homes or the ability of 
businesses to operate and conduct their business. 

  

 
DEFINITIONS 

   

2. What is a street performer?  A person engaging in a performance that includes, 
but is not limited to, the following activities: playing 
musical instruments, singing, dancing, acting, 
pantomiming, puppeteering, juggling, reciting, or 
creating visual art in its entirety as a performance. 

  

 
LICENSE REQUIRED 

   

3. Is a City license required?  Yes.  An application for a street performer license 
shall be made to the City Clerk. 

  

4. Where do I obtain a Street Performer 
License? 

The City Clerk issues the Street Performer License at 
City Hall. 

  

Page 21 of 50



Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
5. How long is my license valid?  From the date of issuance through April 30.    

6. Do I need to display my license when I 
perform? 

Yes. The license holder shall post the license in a 
conspicuous location at the location of the 
performance. 

  

7. Is there a fee to perform?  Yes.  The fee for a street performer license shall be 
$25 per year.  Said fee shall be paid at time of 
application. 

  

8. May I transfer my license to another 
performer or can a group perform under 
one license?   

No. The street performer license is non‐
transferable.  Each performer requires a separate 
license.   

 

 
RULES AND REGULATIONS 

   

9. Where can I perform?  There are no location restrictions provided you do 
not block or restrict an open public street or 
sidewalk at any time.     

No performance shall prevent the public from utilizing 
any public benches, waste receptacles, informational 
signs or other amenities during the performance.  No 
performance shall restrict the width of any sidewalk to 
less than five feet or otherwise inhibit the free 
movement of pedestrians on the sidewalk.  No 
performer shall perform on any street or in any public 
parking space. 

10. Is there a minimum distance that I must 
perform from another street performer? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.    To prevent congestion on sidewalks, no performer shall 
perform less than 50 feet from another performer or 
group of performers on Main Street, Warren Street, 
Green Street, Washington Street, Hill Street, Perry Street 
or Diagonal Street right‐of‐ways. 

11. May I perform on the sidewalk?  Yes, but it shall be unlawful to block or restrict an 
open public street or sidewalk at any time. 

No performer shall perform within 10 feet of the 
doorway or an open window of any business or 
residence.  If a sufficient crowd gathers to observe a 
performer such that the passage of the public through a 
public area is blocked or obstructed, a police officer or 
fire official may disperse that portion of the crowd that is 
blocking or obstructing the passage of the public. If a 
performer cannot conduct a performance in a location 
without blocking or obstructing the passage of the 
public, a police officer or fire official may cause the 
performer to leave the location, but shall not prevent 
the performer from occupying another location in 
compliance with this Chapter. 

Page 22 of 50



Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
12. When can I perform?  Performing is limited to 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

each day of the week. 
 

13. For what duration may I perform?  There is no limit on the duration of performing.  A performer may perform at a single public location for a 
maximum of four hours per day.  The performance time 
at a location is inclusive of any breaks.  Nothing shall 
prevent the performer from occupying another location 
in compliance with this Chapter after a four hour period. 

14. Can I reserve a performance space?   No guidance in the current ordinance.    Performance space shall not be reserved and no 
performer shall leave his or her instruments, props, 
equipment, or other items unattended.  Performers shall 
not occupy public space before 10:00 a.m. or after 8:00 
p.m.  

15. Is there a limit on the number of 
performers that I can perform at the same 
time? 

No limit in the current ordinance.  Not more than five performers may perform as a 
coordinated unit or group in one location.   

16. Is there a limit on the amount of items 
that I may assemble for my performance? 

No limit in the current ordinance.  No performer shall assemble at the performance site or 
perform with more instruments, props, equipment, or 
other items than the performer can reasonably transport 
or remove at one time on his or her person.   

17. May I solicit for donations or 
contributions? 

Performers may collect donations during or 
immediately following a performance, however no 
fee shall be charged for any performance. 

Yes, however, no performer shall charge a fee for their 
performance or items or solicit donations verbally, by 
gesture, or in writing at the performance location.  Only 
a small container or musical case may be left open to 
indicate that free will contributions will be accepted.    

18. May I display signs to at my performance 
location? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.  However, 
the Sign Ordinance does not specifically allow signs 
for street performers. 

No signs are permitted at the performance location.  The 
Street Performer License shall be displayed to identify 
the performer.   

19. May I amplify my music? 
 

No.  No performer shall utilize any speaker, 
microphone or mechanical amplification device. 

  

20. Is there a limit on the volume of my 
music? 

Yes.  No performer shall generate any sound by any 
means so that the sound is louder than 70 decibels 
(70dB) on the Capital A Scale of an ANSI approved 
sound level meter measured at a distance of 50 feet 
or more, either horizontally or vertically from the 
point of generation. 

  

   

Page 23 of 50



Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
21. May I juggle knives, flaming torches, spray 

paint or engaging in other potentially 
dangerous performing? 

No.  No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, 
flame, axe, saw, or other object that could cause 
serious bodily injury to any person. 

No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, flame, 
aerosol, spray paint, axe, saw, or other object, 
flammable liquid, gas, or toxin that could be flammable, 
explode or otherwise cause serious bodily injury to any 
person. 

22. May I use live animals in my performance?  No prohibition in current ordinance.  No.  The use of animals is not permitted. 

23. May I set up a table, stage, or use props 
like ladders? 

No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any 
stage, platform, or similar structure for use during 
any performance.  The current ordinance does not 
clearly state whether tables and chairs are 
permitted.    

No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any 
stage, platform, table or similar structure for use during 
any performance.  A performer may sit on a stool or 
chair while performing.  

24. May I use chalk on the sidewalk as part of 
my performance.   

No prohibition in the ordinance.   No.  The use of chalk on the sidewalk is prohibited. 

25. May I sell goods like cd’s, books, or t‐shirts 
while I perform? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.    No.  A performer shall not make available for a price or 
donation any items.    

26. May I use electricity or a generator?  No guidance in the current ordinance.    No.  No performer shall plug any electrical device into 
any outlet or use a generator. 

27. Are there any other rules and regulations.  No other guidance in the current ordinance.    No street performer shall engage in the application of 
tattoos or body piercing.  No street performer shall 
include obscenity in a performance.  No street performer 
shall engage in harassment or coercion of a passersby. 

 
EXEMPTIONS 

   

28. Are there circumstances where I do not 
need a license to perform in public? 

If you are performing as part of a licensed Street 
Dance you do not need a Street Performer license. 

Yes. If you are performing as part of a licensed Street 
Dance, Fair, Festival, Carnival, or Circus you do not need 
a Street Performer License. 

 
CONSTITUTIONALITY 

   

29. Does the ordinance contain a 
constitutionality clause?   

No.  Yes.  If any provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, 
section or part of this chapter shall, for any reason, be 
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
unconstitutional or invalid, said judgment shall not 
affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this chapter. 
It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent of the 
council that this chapter would have been adopted had 
such unconstitutional or invalid provision, clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section or part thereof not been 
included. 

Page 24 of 50



 
VIOLATION—PENALTY 

   

30. What if I violate the rules of the Street 
Performers Ordinance?  

    (A)   Any person who violates any of the 
provisions of § 110.39 or who knowingly furnishes 
false information on the license application shall be 
subject to a fine of not more than $750. Each day 
any violation shall continue shall constitute a 
separate offense. 
   (B)   Violations of any other provision of this 
chapter, or Chapters 112 and 114 , shall be 
punishable by a fine of not more than $750. Each 
day any violation shall continue shall constitute a 
separate offense. If no license is required, or if 
there exists no current licensing fee for such event 
under which said violation occurred, said violation 
shall be subject to the violation penalties found in 
§ 10.99 . 
 

Also, see suspension of license provision below. 

31. Is there a process for filing a complaint 
against a street performer? 

No guidance in the current ordinance.   Complaints regarding any street performer shall be 
received by the police department and shall include the 
complainant, date, time, place, and details causing the 
complaint.  All complaints shall be forwarded to the 
mayor.   

   

Page 25 of 50



Issue  Current Ordinance  Possible Additions to the Ordinance 
32. Can my Street Performers License be 

suspended or revoked? 
No guidance in the current ordinance.   The mayor may suspend a license for not more than 60 

days if:  
(A) A performer violates any of the provisions of this 

Chapter. 
(B) A street performer has not complied with a 

request to follow written guidelines from either 
the mayor or the police department. 

(C) The City has received at least three documented 
verbal or written complaints regarding 
performances stating the complainant, date, 
time, place and details causing the complaint.  

 
The mayor may request that the city council revoke 
a license that has been suspended.  The revocation 
of a license shall be for a period not to exceed one 
year.   

33. Is there an appeal process if action is 
taken against me based on a violation of 
the ordinance or a complaint? 

  A performer whose license has been suspended or 
revoked may request and is entitled to a public hearing 
concerning the suspension or revocation. Written notice 
will be given to the individual at least 7 days prior to the 
public hearing. The written notice will set forth the facts 
constituting the basis for the suspension or revocation. A 
hearing panel comprised of the mayor and city council 
will hear oral testimony, receive written evidence and 
provide a written decision to performer.  A majority vote 
of the full city council shall be required to uphold or 
modify the original action.    

 

Page 26 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer      
 
DATE:      3 November 2015 
 
RE:      Update of Water System Study 
 
 
Earlier this year the city council approved a contract with IIW Engineers to complete a water system 
study for the east side of Galena. The water study would investigate the system in order to maintain 
minimum fire flow requirements. This situation became more important when one of the three 
watermain crossings of the Galena River failed in December 2014 and could not be easily repaired and 
is now abandoned. This was a very old crossing dating back to 1886 and because of its age and location 
would be very expensive and difficult to replace. The east side is supplied by three wells on the west 
side of Galena and the study considers the option of installing a new well at the in‐ground reservoir at 
Horseshoe Mound as well as other improvements to the east side water system. 
 
The study is now complete and IIW Engineers will make a short presentation at the council meeting on 
their findings and recommendations. They will also be available to answers any questions. The 
executive summary from the draft report is attached. 
 

Page 27 of 50



IIW, P.C. 
www.iiwengr.com 

 
4155 Pennsylvania Avenue  
Dubuque, IA 52002-2628  
(563) 556-2464 | (800) 556-4491 (Voice) 
(563) 556-7811 (Fax) 

1151 Badger Road 
Hazel Green, WI 53811 
(608) 748-4308 (Voice) 
(563) 556-7811 (Fax) 

101 Seventh Ave. South, Ste 200 
St. Cloud, MN 56301 
(320) 230-0840 | (800) 556-4491 (Voice) 
(320) 529-8989 (Fax) 
 

127 A West 76th St. 
Davenport, IA 52806 

(563) 823-0192 (Voice) 
(563) 823-0195 (Fax) 

 

gcostello@clintoncoungy-ia.gov 
I N T E G R I T Y .  E X P E R T I S E .  S O L U T I O N S .  

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: City of Galena 
From: Marc Ruden and Eldon Schneider, IIW 
Date: October 27, 2015 

Subject: Water System Study 2015 
IIW Project No.: 15038 

 

Background 
The City’s water distribution system is divided into four pressure zones: the Industrial Pressure Zone, West Pressure Zone, 
Low Pressure Zone, and East Pressure Zone. The Low Pressure Zone is situated in the downtown area and is divided into 
two regions by the Galena River. All three active City wells are located on the west side of the Galena River. The only way to 
convey water to the Low Pressure Zone and East Pressure Zone on the east side of the Galena River is by means of three 
water mains that cross the river at separate locations. The South Crossing is a 10-in water main crossing near the extension 
of Bouthillier Street. The Central Crossing is a 10-in water main river crossing is near the extension of Johnson Street at the 
south side of Grant Park near the pedestrian crossing. The North Crossing is a 10-in water main river crossing is near the 
extension of Meeker Street. The Central Crossing recently experienced a rupture and has since been taken out of service 
indefinitely. 
The purpose of this Report is to analyze the effects of the reduction of water main crossings across the Galena River with 
respect to system reliability, fire flow scenarios, and impacts on future community growth on the east side of the City. This 
analysis relies on the use of WaterCAD® modeling software to analyze the Low Pressure Zone and East Pressure Zone 
distribution systems. The analyses performed will shed light on the adequacy of the remaining river crossings under both 
normal and fire flow scenarios in the present and future. 

Model Results 
With both remaining crossings in service, fire flows in Low Pressure Zone both downtown and on the East Side of the river are 
acceptable to Dodge Park Standpipe elevation of 840-ft (55-ft depth). When Bouthillier Street Booster Pump Station is active, 
the acceptable elevation of the standpipe to meet fire flow requirements downtown rises to 853-ft (68-ft depth). Fire flows in 
the East Pressure Zone are always acceptable within the normal operating range of the Horseshoe Mound Reservoir. 
With only the North Crossing in service, fire flows in Low Pressure Zone downtown are acceptable to Dodge Park Standpipe 
elevation of 840-ft (55-ft depth). At no point are fire flows in Low Pressure Zone on the east side of the Galena River 
acceptable in the south portion of the area that extends across the entirety of the zone south of Monroe Street. When the 
Bouthillier Street Booster Pump Station is active, the acceptable elevation of the standpipe to meet fire flow requirements 
downtown rises to 853-ft (68-ft depth). The area not meeting fire flow requirements in the Low Pressure Zone on the east side 
of the Galena River extends further north to Madison Street when the Bouthillier Street Booster Pump Station is active. Fire 
flows in the East Pressure Zone are always acceptable within the normal operating range of the Horseshoe Mound Reservoir. 
With only the South Crossing in service fire flows in Low Pressure Zone downtown are acceptable to Dodge Park Standpipe 
elevation of 840-ft (55-ft depth). At no point are fire flows in Low Pressure Zone on the east side of the Galena River 
acceptable in the north portion of the area bounded by Madison Street and Adams Street to the north and south, respectively, 
and Park Avenue and 3rd Street to the west and east, respectively. When the Bouthillier Street Booster Pump Station is active, 

Page 28 of 50



 
 

 

the acceptable elevation of the standpipe to meet fire flow requirements downtown rises to 853-ft (68-ft depth). Fire flows in 
the East Pressure Zone are always acceptable within the normal operating range of the Horseshoe Mound Reservoir. 

Improvement Options 
Distribution system and water supply improvements to address deficiencies in fire flows are as follows: 
 DS1: Increase size of water main on Park Avenue from Johnson Street to Adams Street 
 DS2: Increase size of water main on Highway 20 from 3rd Street to 4th Street. 
 DS3: Install PRV between water main on Bouthillier Street and water main located at corner of Highway 20 and 4th 

Street 
 DS4: Install PRV between water main at north end of 4th Street and water main at east end of Adams Street 
 WS1: Install well and pump house at Horseshoe Mound Reservoir 
 WS2: Install redundant Booster Pump Station near North Crossing to serve as redundant source to fill Horseshoe 

Mound Reservoir 
 
The following table provides a summary of the opinion of probable construction costs for each improvement: 

Line Item Cost ($) 

DS1 – Park Avenue Water Main Improvement $375,000 
DS2 – Highway 20 Water Main Improvement $85,000 
DS3 – South PRV Station $211,000 
DS4 – North PRV Station $155,000 
WS1 - Well and Pump House $1,835,000 
WS2 – North Crossing Booster Pump Station $1,437,000 

Recommended Improvements 
Improvements DS1 and DS2 are the most predictive indicators for successful mitigation of fire flow deficiencies in the model. 
These improvements are recommended for implementation. 
Improvements DS3 and DS4 are of secondary importance and will be most valuable only after a new source of water is 
available in the East Pressure Zone as either WS1 or WS2. Of these, Improvement DS3 provides the most effective resolution 
to fire flow deficiencies. DS4 would only be required if the City chooses to move towards constructing a new well 
(Improvement WS1) and potentially isolating the East Side of the Galena River, a No Crossings scenario. Improvement DS3 is 
recommended for implementation. Improvement DS4 is not recommended at this time. 
Improvements WS1 and WS2 offer alternative methods to address water supply reliability in the East Pressure Zone and on 
the east side of the Galena River in general. The following table summarizes the advantages and disadvantages of each 
improvement option. Improvement WS1 offers the ability for the City to have a water supply on the East Side of the River 
instead of relying on water transfers through multiple pressure zones and through river crossings. Improvement WS2 builds 
upon the reliability of having two river crossings by also having two routes to fill the Horseshoe Mound Reservoir. 
  

Page 29 of 50



 
 

 

 

Line Item Advantages Disadvantages 

WS1 - Well and Pump House 

Source on East Side of River reduces 
dependence on passing water through 
multiple zones to get to East Pressure 
Zone. 
 
Allows East Pressure Zone to operate 
independently of other zones. 
 
In future, could allow East Side of River to 
operate independently. 

Maintenance of new water well, well 
house, and treatment systems. 
 
 
 
Construction cost is higher than 
Improvement WS2. 
 
 
 

WS2 – North Crossing Booster 
Pump Station 

Provides redundant transmission main to 
fill reservoir. 
 
Lower cost improvement to provide 
redundant method to fill Horseshoe 
Mound Reservoir. 
 
 
Provides loop to north side of East 
Pressure Zone for development along 
Powder House Hill Road. 
 

Maintains reliance on river crossings for 
water to reach East Side of River. 
 
Maintains requirement for South PRV 
Station (DS3) to be completed for 
effective remediation of fire flow 
deficiencies. 
 
There are no projected demands along 
Powder House Hill Road that exceed the 
current watermain capacity, so not 
currently required. 

 
The City can decide to take either the path of WS1 or WS2 to meet their on-going needs. The table below summarizes the 
Opinion of Total Project Costs for the Recommended Improvements for both paths. The level of accuracy of this “order-of-
magnitude” estimate is +30 percent to -15 percent. The Total Project Costs for the Improvements associated with WS1 are 
$3,028,000 (range of $2,600,000 to $3,900,000). The Total Project Costs for the Improvements associated with WS2 are 
$2,562,000 (range of $2,200,000 to $3,300,000). 
 

Line Item 
Cost for WS1 
Package ($) 

Cost for WS2 
Package ($) 

DS1 – Park Avenue Water Main Improvement $375,000 $375,000 
DS2 – Highway 20 Water Main Improvement $85,000 $85,000 
DS3 – South PRV Station $211,000 $211,000 
DS4 – North PRV Station - - 
WS1 - Well and Pump House $1,835,000 - 
WS2 – North Crossing Booster Pump Station - $1,437,000 
Total Construction Costs with Escalation $2,506,000 $2,108,000 
Legal and Financing Services (2%) $60,000 $50,000 
Land Acquisition $5,000 $5,000 
Survey Services $7,000 $14,000 
Engineering Services (15%) $450,000 $385,000 
Total Project Costs $3,028,000 $2,562,000 

  

Page 30 of 50



 
 

 

The final table below provides a proposed implementation schedule for completion of the recommended improvements. IIW 
recommends that improvements DS1 and DS2 be completed in the 1- to 3-yr horizon, and either improvement WS1 or WS2 
be completed in the 3- to 8-yr horizon. Planning and permitting for improvements WS1 or WS2 are anticipated to take much 
longer due to the complexity of the projects and funding requirements. Improvements DS3, and DS4 if selected, can be 
delayed to coincide with the completion of these improvements. 
 

Description 
Milestone Date 
of Completion 

Approval of Report and Recommendations November 2015 
Improvements DS1 and DS2 - Park Avenue and Highway 
20 Water Mains 

 

Authorization of Project Spring 2016 
Design Fall 2016 
Permitting Winter 2016 
Construction Fall 2017 

Improvements WS1 and WS2 – Well and Pump House and 
North Crossing Booster Pump Station 

 

Authorization of Project Spring 2017 
Planning Winter 2017 
Design Winter 2018 
Permitting Summer 2019 
Construction Summer 2020 

Improvements DS3 and DS4 – North and South PRV 
Stations 

 

Authorization of Project Summer 2019 
Design Fall 2019 
Permitting Winter 2019 
Construction Summer 2020 

 

Page 31 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 2, 2015 

RE:    Insurance Renewal  
 
At the end of December, the city’s workers’ compensation, liability, auto, portable equipment 
and public official’s insurance policies with the Illinois Municipal League Risk Management 
Association (IMLRMA) will expire.  To extend coverage, the IMLRMA has quoted a new 
premium for next year and has again offered the 85/130 Minimum Maximum option.   
 
As you will recall, four years ago we complete the arduous process of bidding our insurance 
coverage for the first time in many years.  Three firms submitted bids.  The IMLRMA presented 
the low bid and we renewed our coverage with the group.  
 
Effective December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2016, the proposed policy carries a premium of 
$247,226.  This represents 1.5 percent increase from last year’s premium of $243,627.  With 
nearly 800 municipalities in the ILMRMA insurance pool, the renewal rate is calculated from a 
combination of the loss experience of the whole pool as well as that of the individual 
municipality.  The value of insured property and the payroll also contribute to the premium.   
 
By committing to the 85/130 Minimum Maximum (Min/Max) option, the city may reduce the 
proposed premium $26,514.  With this savings the City will pay a premium of $220,712 
(includes 1 percent discount for paying entire premium by November 20).  The potential savings 
with the 85/130 program is an incentive for our municipality to practice sound risk 
management and avoid claims that may result in losses.    
 
The structure of the Min/Max option is relatively straightforward.  If losses are incurred above 
85 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims, the city will be responsible 
for each dollar up to 130 percent of the total dollars set aside for the payment of claims.  In this 
worst‐case scenario, the city would pay $303,290 for calendar year 2016.  Only claims filed 
during the 2016 calendar year would be counted for the purpose of determining if the city 
exceeds the 85 percent threshold.  If the city does not exceed the 85 percent threshold, the 
total premium for the year would be 85 percent (plus administrative costs) or $220,712. 
 

 

Page 32 of 50



2 of 3 

Though we have incurred significant losses in some years, the city’s long‐term loss history 
confirms that the Min/Max option is effective method of reducing insurance costs.  The city has 
saved more than $120,000 from participating in the Min/Max since joining the program in 
1998. 
 
Our current Liability Fund budget contains $230,950 for the insurance premium costs.  This 
amount exceeds the proposed premium of $220,712 by more than $10,000.  I recommend you 
authorize the city’s participation in the IMLRMA’s 85/130 Min/Max plan by passing the 
attached ordinance and by authorizing the payment of the premium.    
    

Page 33 of 50



3 of 3 

Ordinance #O‐15‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE IMLRMA MINIMUM/MAXIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT 

  ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena, a member in good standing of the 
Illinois Municipal League Risk Management Association and party to the IMLRMA 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Contract, has been fully apprised of the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement which amends and supplements the IMLRMA 
Declarations pages dated 12/31/15 to 12/31/16 and all endorsements thereto. 
 
  Whereas, the City Council of the City of Galena finds it to be in the best interest of the 
municipality to make its IMLRMA contribution in accordance with the IMLRMA 
Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement.   
 
  Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Galena: 
 

1. That the execution of the IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Contribution Agreement for 
a one (1) year period beginning 12/31/2015 and ending 12/31/2016 is hereby 
authorized. 

2. That the Mayor and the Treasurer are hereby granted authority to execute the 
IMLRMA Minimum/Maximum Agreement which amends and supplements the 
IMLRMA Declarations pages dated 12/31/2015 to 12/31/2016 and all endorsements 
thereto. 

3. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval.   
 
 
AYES:    
 
NAYS:    
 
PRESENT:    
 
ABSENT:    

 
 
____________________________________________ 
Terry Renner, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
           Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

 

Page 34 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer    
 
DATE:      4 November 2015 
 
RE:      Solar Power to City Hall Roof 
      Approval of Illinois Clean Energy Community Foundation Grant 
 
 
We were recently informed by the Illinois Clean Energy Community Foundation (ICECF) of our success 
in applying for a grant of $52,650 towards a 32.5 kW solar photovoltaic (PV) array at city hall.  
 
In order to comply with the proposed schedule we need to move forward with the production of plans 
and specifications for bidding the project early next year. A single contract design and build type 
project is proposed with the city detailing the type of PV panels, inverters, panel racking, supports and 
grid‐tied connection. We plan to use Strand Associates on an as‐need basis to assist with electrical 
design and the interconnection agreement with the electric utility. We used this consultant for the 
previous solar project at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 
Total project cost is presently estimated at $87,750 with ICECF funding 60%, while the city will fund the 
remaining $35,100. A project funding analysis indicates an annual energy production from the PV 
system of 39,468 kWh. This is similar to the annual electric usage at city hall, effectively making city 
hall a net‐zero building. Based on a simple pay‐back calculation the project will be paid for in ten years, 
after which it will become a revenue generator for the city. We also intend to have a net‐metering 
agreement with Jo Carroll Energy, so any excess power can be sold to the utility at the same rate which 
it is purchased. 
 
I recommend the city council approves the grant agreement from Illinois Clean Energy Community 
Foundation and allow staff to prepare bid documents and plans to install a solar PV array at city hall. 

Page 35 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Andy Lewis, City Engineer and Janelle Keefer, Facility Manger 

DATE:    3 November 2015 

RE:  Turner Hall Improvements 
Approval of Quotes 

As part of the ongoing improvements to Turner Hall, requests for quotes were sent to three 
contractors to install a porch structure to the south facing wall of Turner Hall. Two quotes were 
received detailed as follows: 

Contractor  Amount $ 

Artisan Contractors  2,616.25 

White Construction  4,400.00 

The proposed work involves construction of a painted wood porch structure with standing seam metal 
roof over the south facing door of Turner Hall.  

The Galena Foundation has offered to pay for the above listed improvement. This project will proceed 
using the same policy as previous ones with the city paying for construction work and then be 
reimbursed by the Galena Foundation. 

We recommend the city council approves the quote of $2,616.25 from Artisan Contractors to install a 
porch structure to the south facing door of Turner Hall.  

Page 36 of 50



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 
FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer 
 
DATE:   4 November 2015 
 
RE: Galena Fire Department Training Center Barn Project 

Approval of Quotes for Electrical and Garage Doors 
 
 
As part of ongoing improvements to the barn at the Galena Fire Department Training 
Center, two separate requests for quotes were sent to five total contractors. These will 
be returned to city hall on Monday, 9 November at 10:00 am. 
 
The proposed work includes:  
 

1. Electrical work:  Furnish & install power supply to barn from pedestal to panel, 
new 200 amp service panel box and breakers, outlets, lighting, and switches.   
 

2. Garage doors:  Furnish and install four 10’ wide x 9’ height, insulated, manual 
operation sectional doors with associated hardware, brackets, tracks, 
weatherstrip and locks.  Furnish and install one 8’ wide x 7’ height, non-
insulated, manual operation sectional doors with associated hardware, brackets, 
tracks, weatherstrip and locks. 
 

I will have details of the quotes and a recommendation to the city council at Monday 
night’s meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 37 of 50



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 4, 2015 

RE:    Tax Levy 
 
 
Before the last Tuesday in December, the City must adopt a tax levy ordinance for property 
taxes to be collected next fiscal year.  Prior to considering and adopting the ordinance, the 
council must make a motion communicating the amount of taxes the City expects to levy.  This 
report is intended to provide you with the information you need to make the necessary motion. 
 
I have completed the calculations needed to determine our revenue needs and the property tax 
revenue available under the voter‐approved Property Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL).  I 
used the assessed value estimate from the County Assessor in estimating the available property 
tax revenue.  In the same manner as in recent years, I am presenting two options.  First, levy 
the same amount as last year.  Second, levy the maximum amount available under PTELL.    
 
In preparing the levy options, I calculated expected revenues, expenses and fund balances for 
all funds supported by the tax levy for the current and next fiscal year.  My goal was to levy 
sufficiently to insure that each fund finishes the coming year in compliance with the Minimum 
Fund Balance Policy.  For most funds, this means the fund would end the fiscal year with a 
balance of at least 30 percent of annual expenses.    
 
With the first option, the city would collect $1,341,412 of property taxes in 2015, the same as in 
2014.  The levy rate would decrease from $1.38 to $1.34 per $100 of equalized assessed value.   
With the second option, the city would collect all of the new tax dollars available under PTELL.  
Taking into account an expected increase in city‐wide equalized assessed value of current 
property, the value of new construction, and a very minimal Consumer Price Index increase of 
0.8%, the City could collect a maximum of $16,456 new tax dollars.   
 
If we were to collect the maximum, our tax (levy) rate would increase slightly from $1.38 to 
$1.39 per $100 of equalized assessed value.  The total dollars collected from the levy would 
increase from $1,341,412 to $1,357,868.  Under this scenario, I would anticipate all levy 
supported funds ending next fiscal year in compliance with the Minimum Fund Balance Policy.   
The property tax rate for the General Corporate tax fund would be at the maximum level 

 

Page 38 of 50



2 of 5 

required to be eligible for State of Illinois and Jo Daviess County funding for the Dewey Avenue 
bridge replacement (refer to Petition adopted at the October 27, 2014 city council meeting).    
 
According to the Truth in Taxation law, the City must conduct a public hearing on the proposed 
tax levy if the total levy dollars levied are expected to exceed the previous year’s levy dollars by 
more than five percent.  Levying the maximum would result in an increase of only 1.2% of 
actual levy dollars over last year.  A public hearing is not required with either option.   
 
To make the official determination of whether a public hearing is required, you are required to 
adopt a motion stating the amount of property tax the City expects to levy.   The recommended 
motion would state, “The amount of property taxes the City of Galena expects to levy in 
2015, to be collected in 2016, is $ ______________.”    
 
At the meeting following your decision on the amount you expect to levy, the first reading of 
the actual tax levy ordinance would be presented.  The ordinance must be approved not later 
than the December 28 meeting. 
 
I have attached an Addendum to this report that provides more detail about how the levy is 
calculated, the maximum levy by fund, as well as a historical view of the City’s tax levy.   
 
 

Page 39 of 50



3 of 5 

ADDENDUM 
 
This report is intended to explain the effect of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law 
(PTELL) on the tax levy, the individual components of the levy and the maximum levy for fiscal 
year 2016‐17.    
  
PTELL 
From one year to the next, the amount we may increase our tax levy is prescribed by PTELL.  
The 1991 law was intended to limit property tax growth by allowing a taxing district to receive a 
limited inflationary increase in taxes on existing property, plus an additional amount for new 
construction.  
 
With PTELL, a formula was established for calculating the “limiting rate” or the maximum levy 
rate available to the taxing district each year.  The limiting rate dictates the total taxes that may 
be levied and collected.  Only two factors can increase the limiting rate.  First, the formula takes 
into account the annual cost of living (CPI) increase.  This year the CPI adjustment is 0. 8% (1.5% 
last year).  Second, the formula considers the equalized assessed value (EAV) of any new 
construction or annexations that have occurred during the year.  For this levy year, our new 
construction (and annexations) is estimated to have an equalized value of $409,946.  This is 
based on an estimate from the Jo Daviess County Assessor.    
 
The limiting rate for the coming tax year is estimated as 1.39% of the total city‐wide EAV of 
$97,239,703. Expressed another way, the limiting rate is $1.39 per $100 of EAV.  The calculated 
rate would be a slight increase from $1.38 this year.   
 
Multiplying the limiting rate by the total estimated city EAV of $97,239,703 results in a 
maximum tax levy for the coming year of $1,357,868.  This calculation is expressed as follows: 
 

$97,239,703 (total city EAV) x 1.39% (limiting rate) = $1,357,868 (maximum levy) 
 

The amount of new dollars that we can add to our tax base is calculated as the difference 
between the maximum levy ($1,357,868) and the current year levy ($1,341,412).  The 
difference or the amount of new dollars we may levy is $16,456 or 1.2% more than last year.  
This calculation is expressed as follows:    
 

$1,357,868 (maximum levy) ‐ $1,341,412 (current year levy) = $16,456 (new tax 
dollars) 

 
According to the PTELL, if a taxing body does not levy for all of the new dollars allowed by the 
limiting rate, it may never use the tax dollar value of the CPI or new construction from that year 
in determining future tax levies.  If a taxing body consistently levies for less than is allowed by 
the limiting rate, the loss of potential tax dollars is compounded.  A public referendum is the 
only way to levy at a rate greater than the limiting rate.     
 

Page 40 of 50



4 of 5 

Tax Levy Components  
After determining the maximum levy allowed by PTELL, we must decide how much of the 
available new dollars to collect and how to distribute them across the individual tax funds.  The 
tax levy is comprised of 18 separate levies or funds.  Current fund balances and anticipated 
non‐property tax revenues and expenses are evaluated to determine the amount of taxes to 
collect in each individual fund.   Assuming the maximum levy, the $1,357,868 of tax dollars 
could be effectively distributed across the various funds is shown in Table 1.  The actual levy 
rate for each fund is also shown along with the rate and taxes levied in the 2015.   

 
Table 1.   Proposed Tax Levy 

 
 

Levy Fund 
2015
Actual 
Rate 

2015
Actual 
Tax 

2016
Proposed 
Rate 

2016 
Proposed 

Tax 

Corporate  0.4375 $424,191  0.4375  $425,424  

Street and Bridge1  0.0000 $‐    0.0000 $‐  

Police Protection  0.0085 $8,193  0.0566  $55,000  

School Crossing Guard  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Street Lighting  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Audit  0.0186 $18,005  0.0185  $18,000  

Emergency Services  0.0009 $863  0.0009  $857  

Garbage  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Unemployment Insurance  0.0196 $19,004  0.0314  $30,500  

Workman’s Compensation  0.1207 $117,009  0.0514  $50,000  

Liability Insurance  0.1031 $100,002  0.1717  $167,000  

IMRF  0.1764 $171,005  0.0226  $22,000  

Parks  0.0000 $19  0.0502  $48,780  

Social Security  0.0830 $80,504  0.2016  $196,000  

Levee/Flood Control  0.0629 $61,006  0.0000  $10   

Fire Protection  0.3522 $341,515  0.3540  $344,247  

Water Treatment  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Chlorination  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

TOTAL 1.3835 $1,341,412 $1.3964  $1,357,868 

 
When the tax levy is passed and the taxes are collected, the revenue generated by the 18 
individual funds can only be used for the respective purpose of each fund.  For instance, the 
Liability Insurance tax can only be used to pay for the city’s liability insurance.  Likewise, the 
Audit Tax can only be used to pay for the annual audit.  The only individual fund that can be 
expended or used for virtually any purpose is the Corporate Tax.  This tax is deposited in the 
General Fund.  The proposed levy maximizes the General Corporate tax as required to be 
eligible for state and county funding for the Dewey Avenue bridge project.   
 
As a result of a 2006 change in the PTELL law, any individual tax levy funds that have not been 
levied for three consecutive years can only be returned to the levy by referendum approval 

                                                 
1 The city does not levy for Street and Bridge since the overlapping townships levy this tax and reimburse the city.  The reimbursement is for the 
maintenance of streets that are located both in the city and in their townships. 

Page 41 of 50



5 of 5 

from the voters.  I am proposing to levy a minimum ($10 in some instances) in every fund to 
avoid losing any individual levies. 

 
Historical Comparison 
A summary of the tax levy collected, the percent change of the collection from the previous 
year, and the actual tax levy rate is shown in Table 2.    

 
Table 2.  Galena Property Tax Comparison 1995‐2016 

 
Year 

Collected 
Levy 

Collected 
Percent 
Change 

Levy 
Rate  

1995  $719,361 9.7%  2.37 

1996  $719,626 0.0%  2.17 

1997  $782,904 8.8%  2.02 

1998  $801,666 2.4%  1.87 

1999  $811,012 1.2%  1.73 

2000  $822,879 1.5%  1.76 

2001  $822,439 ‐0.1%  1.63 

2002  $843,539 2.6%  1.54 

2003  $848,003 0.5%  1.49 

2004  $880,679 3.9%  1.48 

2005  $921,318 4.6%  1.45 

2006  $978,284 6.2%  1.42 

2007  $1,006,075 2.8%  1.37 

2008  $1,046,599 4.0%  1.32 

20092  $1,301,301 24.3%  1.27 

2010  $1,323,108 1.7%  1.27 

2011  $1,365,624 3.2%  1.30 

2012  $1,378,790 1.0%  1.34 

2013  $1,378,879 0.0%  1.38 

2014  $1,319,506 ‐4.3%  1.36 

2015  $1,341,411 1.7%  1.38 

20163  $1,357,868 1.2%  1.39 

           
As shown in the table, Galena’s levy rate has decreased from a high of $2.37 in 1995 to a low in 
2009 and 2010 of $1.27.  The rate has increased only slightly over the last five years.   
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   

                                                 
2 Value from expired TIF district returned to tax base. 
3 Based on the maximum levy. 

Page 42 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
110115 1 Invoice PHONE 11/01/2015 328.02 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 328.02

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
110115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/LONG DI 11/01/2015 .32 01.41.552.00
110115 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 11/01/2015 .41 22.22.552.00
110115 3 Invoice EMS/LONG DISTANCE 11/01/2015 .03 12.10.552.00
110115 4 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 11/01/2015 13.88 01.21.552.00
110115 5 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  11/01/2015 50.91 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 65.55

BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71)
4725 1 Invoice HIGHWAY REPAIRS 10/17/2015 5,194.50 01.41.514.02
4727 1 Invoice ROAD REPAIRS 10/17/2015 448.00 01.41.514.02
4737 1 Invoice CRACKFILLING 10/24/2015 2,840.00 01.41.514.02

Total BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71): 8,482.50

CIVIL CONSTRUCTORS, INC. (1122)
13590 1 Invoice PAVING 10/28/2015 69,539.00 01.13.929.03

Total CIVIL CONSTRUCTORS, INC. (1122): 69,539.00

CONMAT, INC. (1187)
99026 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 10/23/2015 130.45 01.41.614.04
99218 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 10/28/2015 115.05 01.41.614.04
99219 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 10/28/2015 187.96 01.41.614.04

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 433.46

DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867)
889023 1 Invoice SIGNS/BARRICADES 10/20/2015 389.16 01.41.652.04

Total DECKER SUPPLY CO., INC. (867): 389.16

DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461)
227060769 1 Invoice PAVEMENT MARKING 10/21/2015 274.30 01.41.514.01

Total DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS (119461): 274.30

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)
1385785 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 10/16/2015 275.75 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 275.75

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
9906639 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 11/03/2015 360.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 360.00

Page 43 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

DUHACK (LEHN) & SONS, INC. (119578)
1014 1 Invoice ROOF REPAIRS 11/02/2015 2,900.00 22.22.844.04

Total DUHACK (LEHN) & SONS, INC. (119578): 2,900.00

FARM & FLEET/SYNCB (120040)
102715 1 Invoice TOOLS 10/27/2015 89.00 01.41.653.00

Total FARM & FLEET/SYNCB (120040): 89.00

FELD FIRE (119879)
0286410 1 Invoice SCBA YEARLY FUNCTIO 10/27/2015 1,200.00 22.22.652.00

Total FELD FIRE (119879): 1,200.00

FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045)
6518 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL REPAIR 10/26/2015 540.00 15.41.514.06
6519 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANC 10/26/2015 180.00 01.41.514.11
6520 1 Invoice SLUDGE BARN ELECTRI 10/26/2015 502.70 01.41.863.09

Total FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045): 1,222.70

FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917)
4927 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT TIRES 10/27/2015 32.27 17.52.514.00
4939 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 10/28/2015 25.89 17.52.514.00

Total FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917): 58.16

G & K SERVICES (532)
110115 1 Invoice UNIFORM SERVICES 11/01/2015 417.68 01.41.579.02

Total G & K SERVICES (532): 417.68

GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20)
2207 1 Invoice EBLAST 11/02/2015 40.00 52.43.549.00

Total GALENA CHAMBER/COMMERCE (20): 40.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00045475 1 Invoice ANNUAL TREASURERS R 10/16/2015 604.20 01.14.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 604.20

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
110115 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 11/01/2015 8.00 01.13.654.00
110115 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 11/01/2015 25.00 22.22.651.00
110115 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 11/01/2015 30.00 22.22.651.00
110115 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 11/01/2015 27.00 58.54.654.01
110115 5 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS - RUG S 11/01/2015 20.00 01.41.652.00

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 110.00

GALL'S, INC. (712)
004287946 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/KIM HATFIEL 10/26/2015 44.94 01.21.471.15

Page 44 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 44.94

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
110115 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 198.88 01.13.511.02
110115 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 53.55 01.21.511.00
110115 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 6.08 01.21.651.00
110115 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 116.30 01.41.514.11
110115 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 457.96 01.41.652.00
110115 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 25.15 01.41.653.00
110115 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 16.82 17.52.652.00
110115 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 93.79 22.22.652.00
110115 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 11/01/2015 721.68 59.55.511.02

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 1,690.21

GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711)
110215 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARKING 11/02/2015 557.00 01.11.929.02

Total GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711): 557.00

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI005754 1 Invoice SWEEPER 10/22/2015 92.69 01.41.613.11

GWO006450 1 Invoice STREET SWEEPER 10/13/2015 305.68 01.41.613.11

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 398.37

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
110115 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 11/01/2015 240.00 01.13.511.07
110115 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  11/01/2015 225.00 01.13.511.08
110115 3 Invoice EXTRA CLEANING PUBLI 11/01/2015 210.00 01.13.511.06
110115 4 Invoice EXTRA PARK RESTROO 11/01/2015 60.00 17.52.422.00

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 735.00

HOOTING COYOTE, LLC (120185)
417 1 Invoice DESIGN/CONSTRUCTION 10/27/2015 775.00 22.22.840.05

Total HOOTING COYOTE, LLC (120185): 775.00

IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260)
63513 1 Invoice IIW STUDY 10/29/2015 1,072.50 51.42.532.01

Total IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260): 1,072.50

IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1610887 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 10/19/2015 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL (118940)
110415 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/04/2015 30.00 01.21.549.00
110515 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/05/2015 30.00 01.21.549.00

Page 45 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL (118940): 60.00

ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (119872)
110415 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/04/2015 30.00 01.21.549.00
110515 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/05/2015 30.00 01.21.549.00

Total ILLINOIS STATE POLICE (119872): 60.00

IML RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION (432)
102615 1 Invoice LIABILITY INSURANCE 10/26/2015 87,404.81 14.14.454.00
102615 2 Invoice LIABILITY INSURANCE 10/26/2015 45,571.13 14.14.591.01
102615 3 Invoice LIABILITY INSURANCE 10/26/2015 19,187.64 14.14.591.03
102615 4 Invoice LIABILITY INSURANCE 10/26/2015 65,176.87 14.14.591.04
102615 5 Invoice LIABILITY INSURANCE 10/26/2015 3,371.14 14.14.591.05

Total IML RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION (432): 220,711.59

J & R RENTAL (1014)
0033428 1 Invoice KIDDY POOL REPAIRS 10/26/2015 96.90 59.55.529.00
0033459 1 Invoice MISC. REPAIRS 10/27/2015 139.36 01.41.613.12

Total J & R RENTAL (1014): 236.26

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
1510398 1 Invoice TOOLS 10/07/2015 65.00 01.41.653.00

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 65.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
102915 1 Invoice LEVEL 2 INTERCONNECT 10/29/2015 140.60 01.45.532.00
110115 1 Invoice ELECTRIC (ST. LIGHTS) 11/01/2015 4,993.07 15.41.572.00
110115 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 336.08 01.13.571.01
110115 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 509.39 01.21.571.01
110115 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 130.40 12.10.571.01
110115 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 45.97 17.52.571.01
110115 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 255.58 20.25.576.01
110115 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 438.28 22.22.576.01
110115 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 784.51 58.54.571.01
110115 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 11/01/2015 37.30 01.41.571.01
110115 10 Invoice LIFT STATION/ELECTRIC 11/01/2015 119.41 52.43.850.09

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 7,790.59

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
110115 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 11/01/2015 200.12 01.21.538.00
110115 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 11/01/2015 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

KIEFFER BODY SHOP INC (1267)
102315 1 Invoice TRUCK REPAIRS 10/23/2015 2,621.70 01.21.513.06

Page 46 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total KIEFFER BODY SHOP INC (1267): 2,621.70

KOOY, SUSAN (120202)
110215 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 11/02/2015 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total KOOY, SUSAN (120202): 200.00

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9303650833 1 Invoice MISC MATERIALS 10/27/2015 139.62 20.25.652.02
9303650834 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANC 10/27/2015 110.99 01.41.514.11

9303652866 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANC 10/27/2015 110.69 01.41.514.11

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 361.30

LOGIC, INC. (120201)
96430 1 Invoice CONTRACT 10/16/2015 17,793.50 51.42.515.00
96430 2 Invoice CONTRACT 10/16/2015 17,793.50 52.43.515.01

Total LOGIC, INC. (120201): 35,587.00

MARTINSON, JOHN (727)
705757 1 Invoice SIGNS 11/02/2015 150.00 01.41.652.04

Total MARTINSON, JOHN (727): 150.00

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)
110115 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE DENTAL 11/01/2015 827.86 01.13.451.01
110115 3 Invoice EMPLOYEE LIFE 11/01/2015 285.22 01.13.452.00

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 1,113.08

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38)
307935 1 Invoice COPIER LEASE 10/21/2015 304.47 01.21.512.03

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38): 304.47

MILLER, JONATHAN (120143)
110415 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 11/04/2015 105.23 01.46.562.00

Total MILLER, JONATHAN (120143): 105.23

MILLER-BRADFORD & RISBERG (1001)
IK06371 1 Invoice END LOADER 10/28/2015 289.00 01.41.613.09

Total MILLER-BRADFORD & RISBERG (1001): 289.00

MORSE ELECTRIC, INC (69)
102216 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT 10/16/2015 87.00 15.41.514.06

Total MORSE ELECTRIC, INC (69): 87.00

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)
88786 1 Invoice MISC. 10/28/2015 169.12 17.52.652.00

Page 47 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 169.12

NICOR (151)
110115 1 Invoice POOL-GAS 11/01/2015 81.50 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 81.50

NICOR (F) (118924)
110115 1 Invoice POLICE-GAS 11/01/2015 26.46 01.21.571.05
110115 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 11/01/2015 108.50 01.41.571.05
110115 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 11/01/2015 34.38 22.22.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 169.34

O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548)
1558537 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/KIM HATFIEL 10/22/2015 231.79 01.21.471.15
1558537 2 Invoice CREDIT MEMO (1559963) 10/22/2015 37.99- 01.21.471.15
1558547 1 Invoice AMMUNITION 10/22/2015 126.12 01.21.652.02

Total O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548): 319.92

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
110115 1 Invoice MISC. CITY HALL 11/01/2015 85.64 01.13.511.01

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 85.64

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
110315 1 Invoice POSTAGE 11/03/2015 16.17 01.21.551.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 16.17

PF PETTIBONE & CO (395)
24274 1 Invoice UNIFORM SHOULDER PA 10/27/2015 499.45 01.21.471.15

Total PF PETTIBONE & CO (395): 499.45

PROJECT MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE (119506)
985995 - 100 1 Invoice PMI MEMBERSHIP 10/08/2015 179.00 01.45.561.00

Total PROJECT MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE (119506): 179.00

SCHROER ARCHITECTURAL MILLWORK (860)
430097 1 Invoice ANTIQUE PUMPER REPA 07/18/2015 450.00 22.22.929.00

Total SCHROER ARCHITECTURAL MILLWORK (860): 450.00

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0441340 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 10/29/2015 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
432835 1 Invoice TRUCK REPAIRS 10/29/2015 210.00 01.21.513.06

Page 48 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 210.00

SPAHN & ROSE LUMBER CO (1166)
102515 1 Invoice KIDDY POOL REPAIRS 10/25/2015 293.97 59.55.529.00

Total SPAHN & ROSE LUMBER CO (1166): 293.97

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
2002 1 Invoice ELECTRONICS RECYCLI 10/26/2015 675.00 13.44.929.00

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 675.00

TREASURER, STATE OF ILLINOIS (119672)
110415 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/04/2015 5.00 01.21.549.00
110515 1 Invoice SEX OFFENDER REGIST 11/05/2015 5.00 01.21.549.00

Total TREASURER, STATE OF ILLINOIS (119672): 10.00

TRENKAMP ELECTRIC (120060)
6573 1 Invoice GENERATOR SERVICE 10/20/2015 220.51 01.21.511.00
6574 1 Invoice CAR REPAIR 10/20/2015 150.57 01.41.613.12

Total TRENKAMP ELECTRIC (120060): 371.08

TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154)
104606 1 Invoice SIGNS 10/05/2015 112.55 01.41.652.04
105297 1 Invoice SIGNS 10/27/2015 112.55 01.41.652.04

Total TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154): 225.10

UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS (388)
UPIN7957 1 Invoice TRAINING 10/19/2015 170.00 01.21.563.00

Total UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS (388): 170.00

UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260)
102815 1 Invoice UPS SHIPPING 10/28/2015 8.59 01.21.551.00

Total UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260): 8.59

US CELLULAR (92)
110115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 11/01/2015 45.20 01.41.552.00
110115 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 11/01/2015 43.04 01.11.552.00
110115 3 Invoice FIRE DEPT./CELL PHONE 11/01/2015 34.04 22.22.552.00
110115 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 11/01/2015 83.98 01.21.552.01
110115 5 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 11/01/2015 44.00 01.261.0

Total US CELLULAR (92): 250.26

US POSTAL SERVICE (1076)
103015 1 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 10/30/2015 750.00 13.44.551.00
103015 2 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 10/30/2015 500.00 51.42.551.00
103015 3 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 10/30/2015 250.00 52.43.551.00

Page 49 of 50



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 10/27/2015 - 11/30/2015 Nov 05, 2015  09:31AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total US POSTAL SERVICE (1076): 1,500.00

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
622200 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 10/22/2015 235.72 01.13.654.00

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 235.72

WEX BANK (CONNOCO) (119104)
110115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 11/01/2015 84.90 01.41.655.00
110115 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 11/01/2015 79.36 17.52.655.03
110115 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 11/01/2015 82.69 01.21.655.00
110115 4 Invoice FIRE-GAS 11/01/2015 8.80 22.22.655.00
110115 5 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 11/01/2015 20.00 01.41.655.00
110115 6 Invoice POLICE-GAS 11/01/2015 19.00 01.21.655.00

Total WEX BANK (CONNOCO) (119104): 294.75

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
110115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 11/01/2015 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 110.00

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
13407 1 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 10/25/2015 262.50 01.13.512.04
13407 2 Invoice COMPUTER MAINTENAN 10/25/2015 150.00 01.21.512.00

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 412.50

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212)
0157234 1 Invoice SWEEPER 10/21/2015 128.25 01.41.613.11

Total ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212): 128.25

Grand Totals: 369,229.80

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 3978447
Vendor number hash - split: 5778628
Total number of invoices: 86
Total number of transactions: 136

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 369,229.80 369,229.80

Grand Totals: 369,229.80 369,229.80

Page 50 of 50


	00.00 Agenda 11.09.15
	01.0422 Minutes cc102615
	02.0424.0 Right of Entry (BNSF as Grantee)
	03.0424 Resolution to Release Funds
	REsol memo
	Resolution to Release Funds

	04.0387 Taxi Licensing Opinion
	05.0388 Street Performers
	110915c
	Current Ordinance 2015
	2015 Street Performers Matrix 11315

	06.0426 Water System Study
	MEMO
	Water System Study Summary Memo

	07.0427 Insurance Renewal
	08.0428 City Hall Solar
	09.0429 Turner Hall Entry Roof
	10.0430 Fire Training Facility Bids
	FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer
	DATE:   4 November 2015
	FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer
	DATE:   26 October 2015
	FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer
	DATE:   26 October 2015

	11.0431 Tax Levy
	12.0432 Warrants 11.09.15



